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Question # Page # Section/Topic Question Answer

1

6 3.1 D  Purpose 
Please provide detailed documentation for the "PARCC Technical Platform," if available, so 
that we may accurately estimate cost of compliance.

Reference documentation for PARCC technical 
specifications and guidelines are available at 
https://parccsharepoint.org/Public_Access/Forms/AllIt
ems.aspx

2

6 3.1 Purpose 

Purpose states this is a development grant.  It would be helpful to also understand what 
happens after the development is complete.  What options will the developer have to 
provide ongoing product support, technical support, training and other services to 
assessment users?  How will those services be compensated?

Services beyond this grant will be considered and, if 
necessary, procured by PARCC at a later date.  
Respondents are encouraged to provide cost 
estimates for these services.

3

7 3.3.2.1  Project Terms 
Assessment System indicates the diagnostic and formative assessments are not required.  
Please describe how these optional assessments will be effectively promoted to PARCC 
schools and what role the developer might play?

The developer is not expected to promote the 
assessments.  PARCC is sharing information through 
its ELCs, state leads, Governing Board, and public 
announcements.

4
8

Project Terms and Definitions 13 & 
15

Is the Partnership Resource Center currently available?  If yes, how can we gain access to 
the PRC?

Not yet available.

5
10 3.5 A. and B.

Appendix C is referenced in the Part A description but is not mentioned in the Part B 
description.  Was it intentionally left off the Part B description?  If so, why?

Appendix C may be useful for responses to Part B, as 
well.

6
16 and 20 B. Corporate Capabilities #2

Are independent consultants considered subcontractors or temporary employees for the 
purpose of the Corporate Capabilities section and for the Price Reply (Part II)?

If they are being compensated by the Contractor for 
services directly related to this contract, they are sub-
contractors. 

7

17 5.2.1.C.4  Design

This item states that the Computer Adaptive Testing applies only to Part A.  Please confirm 
that this takes precedence over page 48, section 7.2.1 which makes a very broad 
statement that Part B services and deliverables are "parallel to those requirements 
described in Part A.

CAT is not required, but may be considered, for Part 
B.

8

28, 29 7.1.3 Diagnostic Assessment Design

4th bullet states cut scores are not necessary.   Yet, 1. Fluency, paragraph two, third 
sentence refers to national norms.  As relates to K/1 Formative Tools, please confirm 
whether or not norms and/or cut scores are to be compiled for the items developed as part 
of this RFP.  If so, shall the sample be constructed nationally?

Cut scores in the way that states have traditionally 
provided proficiency scores for state assessments are 
not necessary, but PARCC intends to provide 
information that indicates where on a continum a 
student is performing.  In the case of fluency PARCC 
will want to provide norms for performance.  

9

29 7.1.3.A.1 Fluency Response/Reply
If passages are procured, does ownership transfer exclusively to PARCC/Florida or can the 
publisher retain rights of ownership as well?  This could affect the cost and quality of 
passages available for purchase.  

Newly developed content, using grant funds, would be 
owned by PARCC/FL.  If the Contractor uses 
materials that, prior to execution of the contract, are 
proprietary to either the Contractor or some other 
entity, rights must be provided to PARCC/FL for the 
anticipated life of the item within the assessment.  
Other possible scenarios may be discussed during 
negotiations. 

10
33

7.1.3 #4  Using and Analyzing 
Sources in Writing

Is this assessment intended for K and 1?  Would oral response be an acceptable 
alternative for grades K/1?  

Oral responses, and other modes of student 
response will be considered.

Submitted by Technology Center for Teaching & Learning
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11

34
7.1.3 A.6 Diagnostic Reading 
Comprehension Test

Third paragraph references Reading Evidence Tables.  There are no such tables for 
grades K-2.  Reading Comprehension is such an important area in all grades, shall we 
adapt grade 3 evidence to earlier grades or is another source of guidance available?

Please see parcconline.org for Reading Evidence 
Tables.  Draft evidence statements for K-2 will be 
provided to chosen contractor(s) upon contract 
execution.

12

35
7.1.3 A.6 Diagnostic Reading 
Comprehension Test

Re first bullet, first sentence - please clarify what is meant by 'necessitating permissions.'   
Does this mean the author is granting permission to use existing work without 
compensation, without any transfer of ownership and without restriction on other uses the 
author may wish to pursue?  If this is reasonably accurate, does it apply equally to other 
forms of pre-existing resources such as test items and technology?  

Necessitating permissions means that the stimulus 
texts are previously published, professional quality 
materials, and that use of these materials for testing 
will likely require the copyright holder to grant 
permissions.  The respondent should consider costs 
for permissions in determining costs for design, 
development, and administration of the assessment. 

13

47 7.1.11  Additional Components
If a respondent incorporates existing Items and/or assessment technology into its design 
and proposal under the 'additional components' clause, what forms of compensation are 
allowable?  

Costs for pre-existing items or materials should be 
incorporated into the overall price keeping in mind 
that if proprietary materials are combined with 
materials developed under the grant, the resulting 
product may become the property of PARCC/FL and 
USED.  

14

48
7.2 - Part B K/1 Formative Tools 
Scope of Services

Second paragraph indicates the tools will be based on the extended K-2 ELA/Literacy and 
Mathematics Model Content Frameworks described in Section 7.1.10.  Section 7.1.10 
states that  "Model Content Frameworks must be developed for Grades K-2."   When will K-
2 MCF be completed and available?  What role will the K/1 Formative Tools developer have 
in writing the K-2 MCF?

A draft of the K-2 MCF will be provided to the 
contractor(s) upon contract execution.

15

48 7.2.1  Contractor Requirements

First sentence states services and deliverables for Part B are "parallel to those 
requirements described in Part A."  This important point needs clarification.  For example, 
page 29 assessment design for 1.Fluency, 2nd paragraph, first sentence states "...so all 
grade 2 students should be able to have their fluency assessed quarterly."  For Part B, 
should this be read as "so all grade K-2 students should be able to have their fluency 
assessed quarterly."?  

Deliverables for K-1 Formative Assessments are 
clearly outlined in the pricing sheet.

16

48
7.2.1  Response Reply 
Requirements

First bullet point states there should be a minimum of 4 experiences per content area per 
grade.  In cases where a finite amount of foundational items exist, there may be more 
efficient methods of assessing student knowledge than using 8 separate forms that test 
only a subset of items.  If we propose a method that does not have the stated number of 
experiences, will our proposal be rejected?

All proposals will be considered, but PARCC is 
seeking the stated minimum number of experiences.

17
55 7.2 Part B Do any of the preceding deliverables (pg50 - top of 55) apply to K/1 formative assessment?

Deliverables for K-1 Formative Assessments are 
clearly outlined in the pricing sheet.

18

56
Liquidated Damages and Financial 
Consequences

These paragraphs seem out of place as there appear at the end of section 7 instead of at 
the end of section 8.  They also seem to be out of sync with Attachment 6.  Please clarify.

Section 8.4 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES should be 
numbered 7.4 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES and Section 
8.4 FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES should be 
numbered 7.5 FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES. Both 
Sections are in the correct location. 

REVISED July 15, 2013
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19

68 Attachment 1 and 1b Are template files available?  If so, where?
Yes, EXCEL versions of the Attachment 1 
Respondent's Price Reply and Attachment 1b Budget 
Worksheet will be placed on the Vendor Bid System. 

20 97 Attachment 6, XI.D Please clarify if the term foregoing means item XI.C or XI. A, B and C. XI. A, B and C

21

106
Appendix B:  PARCC Technology 
and Interoperability Standards.  
Reference Documents

Where can we obtain copies of the latest version of the PARCC Technology Architecture 
Plan?

Reference documentation for PARCC technical 
specifications and guidelines are available at 
https://parccsharepoint.org/Public_Access/Forms/AllIt
ems.aspx

22

N/A Spanish version not mentioned

This ITN makes no reference to development of Diagnostic Assessments or Formative 
Tools in the Spanish language.  Is a native Spanish version, particularly of the K/1 
ELA/Literacy Formative Tools desirable?  If so, what weight will it bear in the evaluation 
process?

Proposals which include translations will be 
considered by PARCC.

23

15 Section 5.2.1

section 5.2.1, paragraph 2; it states “It is requested that Respondents’ provide complete 
electronic Word and .pdf copies of the Technical Reply, and complete Excel and .pdf 
copies of the Price Reply, organized and submitted in the same order/sequence as 
presented in the hard copies. Respondents should write the entire electronic version on a 
portable storage device, CD/DVD/flash drive, in one single Word and .pdf file in lieu of 
numerous individual page or section file documents. Do not combine the Technical and 
Price Replies.” Could you please provide us with Word versions of the ITN and Excel 
versions of Attachments 1 and 1b (the Price Reply and Project Budget Sheet)?

Regarding the Respondent's Price Reply and Budget 
Worksheet, see answer to question #19. A WORD 
version of the ITN will not be provided. 

  

24 N/A General Question Are there expectations or guidelines for the length of time available for the field test (by 
grade and content if varies)?

The field test window is expected to be one month for 
all grades and both content areas.

25 N/A General Question

In several places the ITN specifies that teachers may be included in the scoring process. 
Please confirm that the option of teacher scoring only applies to the operational 
administration (which is beyond the scope of this ITN) and that respondents can propose all 
machine, vendor, and/or AI scoring for the field test. 

For the field test, respondents may propose all 
machine, vendor and/or AI scoring.  If classroom 
teachers are not participatory in the field test scoring, 
but would be expected to do the scoring for the 
operational assessment, the respondent should 
support this decision with valid evidence.  In addition, 
if AI scoring is proposed, the respondent should 
support its valid use with evidence.

26 N/A General Question

Are there expectations of the field test being comprised of online linear forms versus fixed 
length adaptive?

At a minimum the field test should be comprised of 
fixed length adaptive experiences. However, field test 
designs including a combination of methods will be 
considered provided they ensure sufficient 
psychometric information for the operational 
assessment.  However, fixed length adaptive is not 
expected for the opearational CAT.

Subitted by Measured Progress

Submitted by Pearson
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27 5, 10 Section 3, Introduction

Please clarify the anticipated contract start and end dates and contract duration. There is 
conflicting information within the ITN. Page 5 indicates a 24 month contract (July 2013-July 
2015), page 10 indicates a 20 month contract (no sooner than November 2013-July 2015).

The contract dates are anticipate to go from 
November 2013 to July 2015.

28 9 3.4, Critical Event Dates
If the responses to the technical questions will not be posted by July 8 can PARCC let 
respondents know as soon as possible what the revised date is so that respondents can 
plan accordingly? Also, would PARCC consider extending the proposal due date to have 
technical and price replies due three weeks after the responses to technical questions are 
posted? (e.g., if responses are posted on July 8, extend due date to July 29?). There are a 
number of major design issues that will be impacted by the questions we have asked.

The responses will now be due by July 30, 2013 @ 
2:15 PM. Delivery instructions and address remain 
unchanged. 

29 19-20 5.2.2, Submittal Documents

Which of the documents listed (A-F) are required for subcontractors?

Documents are not required from subcontractors, 
however; Respondents are required to disclose any 
pertinent, negative information regarding 
subcontractors they anticipate using on the project. 

30 25-27 7.1.1 Reporting Section 7.1.1 describes a technology enhanced reporting system that is seamlessly 
integrated with the technology infrastructure that delivers the diagnostic assessment, yet 
the provision does not provide technical specifications for a software based reporting 
system.  We presume that this section of the ITN requires the use of a pre-existing 
reporting solution licensed by the Contractor for the diagnostic assessments during the 
term of the contract until such time as PARCC can procure the development of such 
technology under the separate technology infrastructure procurements.  Is this correct? If 
not please clarify.

The PARCC platform is scheduled to be ready prior to 
field testing, and respondents should be prepared to 
use the PARCC platform at that time.  Relevant 
technical specifications and guidelines regarding data 
formatting and exchange protocols are available via: 
https://parccsharepoint.org/Public_Access/Forms/AllIt
ems.aspx

31 32-33 7.1.3.A.3, Vocabulary

There are concerns with measuring vocabulary using permissioned passages, most notably 
prohibitive cost for permissioning and excessive testing time (since only limited vocabulary 
can be assessed per passage). Would PARCC consider discrete vocabulary questions with 
limited context (perhaps one or two sentences) rather than as embedded in authentic 
passages?

 PARCC will consider mitigation strategies against 
cost drivers for vocabulary, including but not limited to 
use of the same permissioned text to measure 
multiple vocabulary claim items, but PARCC does not 
support the use of commissioned passages and one 
or two sentence contexts.  Respondents should see 
the PARCC prototype items for the PARCC 
Summative Assessments that measure vocabulary 
(EBSR items) as prototypes for the diagnostic 
measurement of vocabulary.

REVISED July 15, 2013
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32 33-34 7.1.3.A.4, Using and Analyzing 

Sources in Writing

The ITN states that “the prompts/items for this module will be developed by contractors 
selected to develop PARCC MYA items, therefore no fees should incur for item/prompt 
development under this ITN...All scoring and range-finding materials, training sets, 
exemplar papers and scoring rubrics developed to support these prompts/items will be 
made available for use by the vendor as needed.” Please specify the number of 
prompts/items that will be provided to the vendor, and when the prompts/items and scoring 
materials will be available. Will all of the prompts/items that are provided to the vendor be 
administered in PARCC’s spring 2014 field test that is part of a separate solicitation? 
Please clarify the need to re-administer any of the prompts/items as part of the 2015 
diagnostic field test.

The writing prompts are part of performance-based 
tasks with multiple items, with the prompts not to be 
delivered as stand alone items.  For the purposes of 
estimating the number of items and prompts to be 
uploaded into the platform, the respondent should 
expect 4 complete performance-based assessment 
forms (see PARCC summative forms specifications 
located on www.parcconline.org).   All of the 
prompts/items and scoring materials for the writing 
diagnostic will be provided to the vendor (these are 
being developed as part of separate solicitations) in 
the summer of 2015. PARCC does not plan to re-
administer any of the prompts/items as part of the 
2015 diagnostic field test.  

33 33-35 7.1.3.A.4, Using and Analyzing 
Sources in Writing

We assume PCRs from the mid-year assessments will be used for this diagnostic test. 
PCRs take about 30 minutes per task. Given this, should the diagnostic assessment 
prompts be administered in an adaptive manner for the operational assessment?

Each PCR is situated  in a complete performance-
based task, and the prompts cannot be separated 
from the texts and some of the items in the 
performance-based tasks.  Consequently, the writing 
assessment should be designed to allow for students 
to read relevant texts, answer most pertinent items to 
gather ideas for writing, and to write the PCR. The 
PBA is made up of three different types of writing  
tasks, but for the diagnostic assessment, a student 
need not take all three different types of tasks.  
PARCC will consider adaptive and fixed form options 
for the design of the writing using and analyzing 
sources component.

34 33-35 7.1.3.A.4, Using and Analyzing 
Sources in Writing

Mid-year narrative writing tasks only have one passage and the ITN specifies that students 
must synthesize evidence extracted from multiple sources. Therefore, would Narrative 
writing tasks be excluded from this diagnostic assessment?

The narrative writing task will require students to 
produce a narrative story or narrative description that 
uses a single text as a stimulus.  Narrative stories will 
not be scored for reading--only for writing (written 
expression and knowledge of language and 
conventions).

REVISED July 15, 2013
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35 34 7.1.3.5 Student's Independent 

Reading Level
The ITN speaks to requirements for a scale for the IRL and states : “Estimate must be 
established on a recognized scale that aligns with a quantitative measure of text 
complexity. One or more of the following scales will be acceptable for alignment 
purposes.(Please see http://www.corestandards.org/assets/Appendix_A.pdf)” 

Much has been learned about quantitative text complexity measures since the common 
core standards were written and several text complexity measures that were not mentioned 
in that Appendix have been shown to compare favorably with Lexiles, for example, such as 
ETS’ SourceRater and Pearson’s Reading Maturity Metric. Would these measures be 
acceptable for use with the IRL?

PARCC will consider alternative measures for use 
with the IRL if the respondent can demonstrate 
evidence that these measures have a research-base, 
are equivalent  in quality with those listed in the 
revised Appendix A, and can be correlated with those 
listed in the revised Appendix A.

36 35-37 7.1.3.A.6. Diagnostic Reading 
Comprehension Test

May respondents propose to incorporate the IRL into the Diagnostic Reading 
Comprehension Test or is it required that vendors propose two separate assessments, one 
to determine IRL and one for Diagnostic Reading Comprehension

PARCC would consider a design that combines the 
IRL and Diagostic Reading Comprehension Test, as 
long as the requisite reporting structures are met by a 
single assessment design.  

37 39-40 7.1.4 Item Development, Publishing 
and Review

The ITN indicates respondents may propose "hybrid  face-to-face/virtual meetings" which 
may be cost prohibitive. Please confirm that after an initial face-to-face review meeting that 
committee review meetings can be conducted virtually. 

After initial face-to-face review meetings, committee 
review meetings future review meetings may be 
conducted virtually.

38 42 7.1.5 Field Testing

Please clarify what scope of work respondents should assume relative to call center 
support for schools and districts participating in the February 2015 field test. For example, 
should respondents assume that the PARCC online testing delivery provider will handle all 
calls associated with the delivery platform, or will the vendor for the diagnostic contract 
need to be able to answer test delivery platform questions? 

PARCC currently anticipates that a separate vendor, 
procured under a separate solicitation, will be 
responsible for the overall central PARCC call center 
support. Test Delivery platform issues will be handled 
through the central call center. However, the 
Contractor for the Operational Diagnostic 
Assessment is expected to provide access to 
appropriate staff  during the Field Test that respond to 
inquiries and support prompt resolution of issues 
managed through the call center that relate to student 
or administrative use of the Diagnostic Assessments. 
In addition, the Contractor for Diagnostic Assessment 
is required to provide technical documentation and 
training materials to support the administration of the 
Diagnostic Assessment, as described in ITN Sections 
7.1.5 and 7.1.6.

REVISED July 15, 2013
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39 42 7.1.6 Operational Test Form 

Development
The ITN includes the following requirement: ‘The plan will include a final review stage which 
will involve a computer-based delivery of each product produced by the vendor. The 
purpose of the final stage is to ensure that the product is error-free in its final form and any 
adaptive algorithms or procedures which have been defined are working as intended.”

Computer based delivery of each product is unlikely to ensure the product is error-free in its 
final form or that the adaptive algorithms are working as intended, and may be prohibitively 
expensive for prospective contractors to implement. Would PARCC consider proposals for 
alternative QC and review plans that might be more feasible and that might better meet 
PARCC’s stated purpose?

The contractor will be expected to participate in 
computer-based quality control and quality assurance 
processes.

40 43 7.1.6 Operational Test Form 
Development 

The ITN states that the vendor will be responsible for providing Assessment Delivery 
Software, including algorithms, and the deliverable is titled “development and delivery of 
final algorithms.”  We presume that Respondents may propose to use a proprietary, pre-
existing algorithm or software that will be retained by the Contractor to satisfy this 
deliverable requirement.  Is this correct?  If not, please clarify.

PARCC will become the owner of the algorithm or 
software that is used for the diagnostic assessment 
and will reserve the right to release the code 
developed under this ITN as open license/open 
source material.

41 44 7.1.7, Platform and Engine 
Requirements The ITN states "PARCC is developing an online delivery system that is being developed 

under a separate solicitation, " however the ITN requires responses to technical 
requirements of the system such as the following on page 29 "student responses must be 
able to be recorded to support play-back and future scoring." Please confirm that online 
delivery system functionality (e.g., recording oral student responses) and the cost of the 
delivery (e.g., click charges, hosting costs, etc ) through the system are outside of the 
scope of this ITN and not to be covered by the $12 million budget.

Online delivery system functionality and cost of the 
delivery as noted in the question are outside the 
scope of this ITN.

42 44 7.1.7, Platform and Engine 
Requirements

We understand that the PARCC online delivery system is being procured through a 
separate solicitation. However, for the diagnostic and formative assessments, what 
accommodations (zoom, audio, overlays, etc) are required to be delivered during the field 
test versus the operational administration, so that we can plan for any content 
coding/tagging that needs to occur during item development. 

The accommodations for the field test and operational 
administration are intended to be the same.

43 44 7.1.7 Platform and Engine 
Requirements Section 7.1.7 indicates that a computer platform/delivery system may be needed in the 

event the PARCC computer platform/delivery system is not available before the Field 
Testing.  However, this section does not indicate that provision of the “interim” system 
would be pursuant to a cost option, and does not include any technical requirements for a 
platform which would allow Respondents to develop a price reply for such scope of work.  
We assume that the proposal response and costs included in response to section 7.1.7 
should not include the cost of using or licensing a third-party platform, but rather should 
only include costs for the plan for securing a platform, and then subsequent labor needed to 
administer the assessments on the platform.  Is this correct?  If not, please clarify

The proposal response and costs included in 
response to section 7.1.7 should not include the cost 
of using or licensing a third-party platform, but rather 
should only include costs for the plan for securing a 
platform, and then subsequent labor needed to 
administer the assessments on the platform.

REVISED July 15, 2013



Question # Page # Section/Topic Question Answer
44 49 Table 1. Proposed Timeline of 

Events
The ITN lists April-July 2014 as the expected timeline for "Development and Testing of 
Software Required to Support Field-Test Delivery, Scoring, and Reporting." Please clarify 
what delivery software is required under the proposed contract versus the delivery software 
that will be provided by the PARCC online delivery system through the separate solicitation. 
Also, please confirm that respondents may propose alternative/later dates for this task. The 
current timeline allows only four months for development and shows completion seven 
months prior to the field test.

Delivery software for field testing, including scoring 
and reporting is intended to be the PARCC platform.  
Alternate dates will be considered, provided they lead 
to on-time final delivery.

45 50 7.3 Deliverables, Table 1. Proposed 
Timeline of Events

Where in Section 7.1 and 7.2 are the requirements for the "piloting of reporting system and 
usability analysis (using FT data) defined?" Please describe the scope of work associated 
with this deliverable.

The goal of this requirement is to test and receive 
feedback on the usability of the designed and 
implemented reports within the PARCC reporting 
system to inform the final design specifications.  The 
pilot should gather information from key audiences 
(teachers, principals, etc.) on the general user  
experience, ease of navigation of the reports and 
system, clarity of information provided, and usability 
of the information provided to inform instruction.

46 56 8.4 Liquidated Damages Section 8.4(B) is applicable to “Major Work Tasks/Activities and Interim Deliverables, and 
refers to Section 7.3, which defines the Major Interim Deliverables, but does not reference 
“Work Tasks/Activities.”  We presume that section 8.4(B) refers to the deliverables 
designated with an “M, I.”  If not please clarify.

This interpretation is correct. 

47 62-84 Attachment 1, Respondent's Price 
Reply and Attachment 1b 

If possible, please provide the Respondent Price Reply documents in Excel format. See answer to question #19.

48

123 Appendix C

Is stage two adaptive testing required for all of the English language arts and mathematics 
diagnostic tests? Page 123 indicates respondents "should feel free to propose alternative 
adaptive designs," for Vocabulary. Please clarify specify for which tests stage two adaptive 
testing is required. 

Stage two adaptive testing is required for 
mathematics.  In ELA/Literacy, the first stage should 
be reading comprehension, with additional stages 
including the other ELA assessments.

49

15 5.2.1 Technical Reply (Part I)

In the first paragraph of section 5.2.1 of the ITN it states that respondents must submit 
proposals in electronic format "copies in Microsoft Word 5.0 or higher, or Adobe Acrobat." 
However, in the next paragraph respondents are required to provide both Word and PDF 
copies of the technical reply. Furthermore, a "single Word and .pdf file in lieu of numerous 
individual page or section file documents" is required. Please confirm that both Word and 
PDF versions of the technical reply are required. If both versions are required, providing a 
single Word document of the entire response could pose significant technical issues on any 
computer because of the size of the single file once all text is combined. Additionally, the 
response may contain other file types that are not readily converted to Word. Will you 
consider responses that include a single PDF and multiple files (e.g., organized by major 
RFP section) in a Zip.file to prevent computer problems? 

Yes.

50
20 5.2.3 Price Reply (Part II)

Please confirm that the price reply should be makred "PRICE REPLY FOR ITN 2014-11," 
not "2012-68" as indicated on page 20 of the ITN.

yes, the correct ITN number is ITN 2014-11
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51

33-35 7.1.3.A.3, Vocabulary

The ITN states that the prompts/items for this module will be provided by the contractors 
developing the PARCC Mid-Year Assessments items, therefore no fees should incur for 
item prompt development under this solicitation. Does that mean that the diagnostic writing 
test is to cover grades 3-8 only, or where are the prompts/items coming from for grade 2?

The section referenced (Vocabulary) does not match 
the question posed (which seems to refer to the 
following section on Writing).  The diagnostic writing 
assessment is designed to be administered in grades 
3-8.

52

33-35 7.1.3.A.3, Vocabulary

The ITN states that the prompts/items for this module will be provided by the contractors 
developing the PARCC Mid-Year Assessments items, therefore no fees should incur for 
item prompt development under this solicitation. Please confirm that any permissions costs 
associated with administering the MYA items as part of the diagnostic field test and 
operational assessment will not be included as part of this contract? 

The section referenced (Vocabulary) does not match 
the question posed (which seems to refer to the 
following section on Writing).  The contractor will not 
be responsible for any permissions costs associated 
with administering the MYA items as part of the 
diagnostic field test, and these items are to be field 
tested as part of a separate contract.  Permissions 
costs may be assoicated with the operational 
assessment of the diagnostic assessment. 

53
Attachment 1, Respondent Price 
Reply, Part A

Attachment 1, Respondent Price Reply, Part A for the Diagnostic Assessment includes 
lines for Part B: K-1 Formative Assessment Tool. Should these lines be left blank or will 
PARCC provide new pricing sheets to reflect only the scope of work for Part A?

Correct. A replacement price page will be provided 
with this Addendum. 

54

Attachment 1, Respondent Price 
Reply, Part A & B

There appear to be rows missing in the combined Attachment 1, Respondent Price Reply, 
Part A & B, that are included in the Part A only template. For example, In Part A, "Item 
Development, Publishing, and Review" follows the "Fluency" section. However, in the 
combined price reply document, there is not a heading for "Item Development, Publishing, 
and Review" after "Fluency." Will PARCC provide a revised Attachment 1, Part A & B to 
show common deliverables for A across both versions?

Correct. A replacement price page will be provided 
with this Addendum. 

55 97-98
Attachment 6,  Standard Terms & 
Conditions, XI.,A-E

If a vendor would like to propose an existing assessment delivery solution (in use by current 
K-12 clients) that can be enhanced to meet the requirements in this ITN, would it be 
considered preexisting software as discussed in XI. D, and therefore allow the vendor to 
retain the ownership of the software?

PARCC intends to own the assessment and related 
code, and has to be able to release as open 
license/open source as per USED requirements.

56 97-98
Attachment 6,  Standard Terms & 
Conditions, XI.,A-E

Will the Department consider proposals that allow the vendor to retain ownership of the 
assessment delivery solution being proposed and allow the Department to retain ownership 
of only the item content included in the solution? 

If existing assessment delivery systems do in fact continue to be owned by the vendor, how 
would new features / enhancements on this system directly related to this ITN be treated?  

Please see the answer to Question #55.  Regarding 
any temporary platform in the event the PARCC 
platform is not ready as anticipated, the vendor would 
need to provide PARCC with appropriate licensing for 
the period of use. 

57 97-98
Attachment 6,  Standard Terms & 
Conditions, XI.,A-E

1) If the chosen vendor develops new item content for the Department on top of a pre-
existing CAT system, would the Department own only the item content, and not the IP to 
the pre-existing platform?  2) If new software features are built on top of a pre-existing CAT 
system, does the Department expect to own the IP to those new features?

See answer to Question #55 

Submitted by Scantron
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58 10
3.5 ITN Response Component & 
Contract Awards 

Is the Department expecting the awarded vendor to deliver a system (i.e. source code) that 
the Department will then host and deliver to its' clients;  or, is the Department expecting the 
awarded vendor to not only provide the assessment system, but then host and support the 
application when in use by all of the Department's clients in future years?

If the latter,  what budget is expected during implementation (after the 20 month design 
period) for the vendor to host and support the application?  Does the Department intend to 
fund this directly or through sharing revenue with the vendor based on client 
usage/purchases? 

The Department is expecting the awarded vendor to 
deliver a system which the PARCC will host and 
deliver using the PARCC platform.

59

Is there an anticipated revenue stream for the vendor for use of the system after the 20 
month contract term ends? Will the Department be responsible for the sale of the platform 
and retain 100% of the funds? Will the awarded vendor be involved in the transactions and 
deployment?  

This question falls outside the scope of this 
procurement. 

60

What are the software maintenance expectations beyond the 20 month contract term? Who 
will be responsible for maintenance of the software? If vendor, what is the funding model 
for this and is there an anticipated contract term for software maintenance?  

PARCC will maintain the PARCC platform. PARCC 
may seek to contract with the vendor for upgrades to 
the software in the future, but such terms are not 
within the scope of the current ITN.

61
Is the intent to deliver the Diagnostic assessments on the overall PARCC assessment 
platform or the platform provided through this ITN?

The intent is to deliver the Diagnostic Assessments 
on the PARCC platform.

62

The ITN discusses using PARCC item formats - does this mean we should assume the 
item types used on the diagnostic assessments will mirror the item types being used in the 
PARCC summative assessments?  If not, can you describe more specifically what is 
intended? 

The item types on the Diagnostic Assessment should 
mirror the item types on the summative assessment, 
but may also include alternative item types to meet 
the specific demands of the Diagnostic assessment.

63 48
7.2 Part B: K-1 Formative 
Assessment Tools, Paragraph 1 Is there further clarification as to what will make the assessment tools "innovative" ? Not at this time.

64 24 7.1 Part A, Paragraph 1 

Where you indicate "generate high quality, user friendly supplemental materials that inform 
the interpretation and use of assessment results" are you describing material, such as job 
aids, to help teachers understand how to interpret and use the reports, and/or other types 
of users within the ecosystem (such as administrators, parents, students, etc.)?

Can vendors include consulting services as part of this line item and would the Department 
be willing to pay for this premium service?

Materials envisioned here include, but are not limited 
to, sample reports and interpretation guides for 
educators.  Consulting services are not contemplated 
in this procurement.

65

If a vendor includes a partnership with another vendor to deliver part of this solution, would 
that vendor's deliverables be subject to the same IP expectations outlined in Attachment 6,  
Standard Terms & Conditions, XI.,A-E?  (for example, artificial intelligence for scoring 
essay items).

Yes

Page # Section/Topic Question

66 34/35
7.1.3.A.5 Students's Independent 
Reading Level

Are any samples specific to 7.1.3.A.5 required? Not at this time.

Submitted by Data Recognition Corporation
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67 35/36
7.1.3.A.6 Diagnostic Reading 
Comprehension

Are any samplesspecific to 7.1.3.A.6 required? Not at this time.

68 28-36, App

7.1.3 Diagnostic Assessment Design
Page 28 indicates that there are 5 ELA tests, but the following pages (28-36) describe 6 
tests. Appendix C says that there are 5 tests, but the 5 items described do not line up with 
those described on p28-36. Please clarify.

There are 5 ELA tests and the IRL measure.  The five 
tests for ELA are Fluency, Decoding, Vocabulary, 
Reading Comprehension, and Writing Using and 
Analyzing Sources.

69 39

Section 7.1.4  Item Review Process: 
Contractor Requiremnts 

The desired number of members on each review committees is not specified. Should 
respondents provide recommendations?

Recommendations are welcome.  PARCC will make 
the final determination regarding the number of 
reviewers on each team.

70 46

7.1.10 Support the Development of K-
2 Model Content Framework

The desired number of members on each review committees is not specified. Should 
respondents provide recommendations?

See answer to Question #70.

71 124 Permissions Are we to assume an unlimited number of online hits for permissioned passages? Yes.

72 104
Appendix A

Are the customized dictionary and embedded/pop-up glossary to be provided in English 
only?

English is a minimum.  Respondents may propose 
additional languages, if they choose.

73 115
Appendix C

Is the Reading Comprehension Test solely made up of the first three sub tests (fluency, 
decoding and vocabulary?  Or is it also a separate test of its own.  

The reading comprehension test is a separate test of 
its own.

74 29
7.1.3 #1

The Fluency test at grades 3 - 5 mentions using national norms as a guide to follow-up 
testing.  Does PARCC have a document that provides specificity around this guide? 

Not at this time.

75 29 7.1.3 #1 Are poems considered as part of the Literature genre for the Fluency Test? Yes.

76 31
7.1.3.#2

Pre-determined criteria for fluency is mentioned is the Diagnostic test section. Is that 
something that still needs to be created? 

Yes.

77 36

7.1.3 B Is there a minimum number of administrations expected for the Math assessment? 

PARCC will accept a minimum of 2 administrations of 
the Math assessment, however; PARCC would perfer 
a greater number of administrations while staying 
within the provided budget.  

78 29-32

7.1.3

Is it possible to have access to the guiding documents that provide the expected criteria for 
the passages so that the expected samples can reflect those expectations? In some 
sections it states the passage selection guidlines are attached (p. 29 -3rd bullet) and in 
others it states they will be provided on contract exection (p.32 - 5th bullet).

Draft passage selection guidelines are provided at 
http://www.parcconline.org/assessment-blueprints-
test-specs  Revised guidelines will be provided upon 
contract award.  

79 50

Table 2 and throughout ITN
Could you please clarify "5 day and 30 day reports" in relation to the content and 
bias/sensitivity results of review of passages and items?

5- and 30-day reports are intended to provide results 
of item reviews, including quantitative and qualitative 
data on acceptance and rejections rates and overall 
item quality.

Submitted by Northwest Evaluation Association
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80

20

5.2.3 Price Reply (Part II): "The 
Respondent’s price information shall 
be submitted on the forms provided 
in this ITN and provided as both a 
Microsoft Excel version and Adobe 
Acrobat PDF file format."

Could the Department please make available for vendors the Excel worksheet templates 
for Attachment 1, Respondent's Price Reply (pp.62-84) and Attachment 1b, Project Budget 
(pp. 88-90)?

See answer to Question #19. 

81

25

7.0PARC requires a diagnostic 
assessment that can deliver on the 
following innovations… "coverage of 
a subset of such standards selected 
"a la carte" by a user.

Please explain how the Department envisions "a la carte" selection. 

Assessment users should be able to choose certain 
domains for additional adaptive testing, in order to 
gather more information about student learning in 
those areas.

82

25

7.0 PARCC requires a diagnostic 
assessment that can deliver on the 
following innovations… "assess the 
adequacy of coverage of identified 
standards and the estimated level of 
confidence the user can have in the 
reported results at the standard 
cluster level.

Please explain what is meant by "estimated level of confidence" and define "standard 
cluster level". What evidence would vendors be required to provide to support "adequacy of 
coverage"?

PARCC expects the functionality of the Diagnostic 
CAT to include the ability for a teacher to select the 
number of items and/or projected testing time that will 
be included in the administration of an assessment 
using the CAT engine for a given group/set of 
standards.  For example, if the assessment is 
intended to cover 4 standards and the teacher selects 
"administer 8 items" the system might report back 
that the teacher cannot have confidence that these 4 
standards can be adequately covered with so few 
items (and to expect false positive/false negative 
results).  However, if the teacher selects "administer 
40 items" the system might report back that the 
teacher can have moderate (and perhaps even 
"strong") confidence that coverage is adequate to 
report a level of proficiency per standard.

83

25

7.1.1.B The reports should allow 
students, parents, classroom 
teachers, principals, and district 
leadership to see individual student 
data over time to determine if a given 
student has reached a level of 
matery in a given area."

Over what period(s) of time does the department wish to see reports of progress? Monthly, 
quarterly, annually, year over year? How does this requirement compare to progress 
monitoring?

Times per quarter in the first half of the school year.

REVISED July 15, 2013



Question # Page # Section/Topic Question Answer

84

33

7.1.3.A.3 Enough items must be 
developed to provide for multiple 
administrations of a [Vocabulary] test 
within a given school year and a 
minimal likelihood of double 
exposure.

Adaptive assessment item pools vary largely based upon the number of administrations. 
Please specify the number of "multiple administrations" expected for better estimations of 
items that will need to be developed.

A minimum of four administrations is expected.

85

35

7.1.3.A.5 There must be sufficient 
number of unique items/passages in 
the item bank to allow for a single 
student to be assesed multiple times 
within an academic year with a 
minimal degree of double-exposure. 

Similar to question above, in order to establish adequate item counts for sufficient 
coverage, it is important to understand the number of administrations. Please define 
"Multiple" - is that twice or eight times a year? What would be the maximum number of 
administrations expected?

See answer to Question #85. 

86

36

7.1.3.B An item pool that is large 
enough to allow for multiple adaptive 
administrations within a given school 
year. 

Please define "multiple adaptive administrations" with more specificity. See answer to Question #85. 

87

38
7.1.4 The process that will be used 
to attain PARCC approval of all item 
development material.

Please define all "item development materials" that PARCC seeks to review. 
Materials include, but are not limited to items, 
distractors, passages, prompts, and scoring rubrics 
where appropriate.

88

41

7.1.5 Note that there is no standing 
requirement for all PARCC states 
and schools to participate in field 
testing for the Diagnostic 
Assessment, but the Respondent's 
proposed field test plan must include 
an explanation of how the proposed 
sampling will yield adequate 

Does this statement mean that vendors will not be able to work with PARCC states and 
schools to participate in field testing? Is it PARCCs expectation that vendors should fund 
additional field testing (including probable participant incentives) as a part of this contract? 

The statement means that while at least some 
PARCC states and schools will engage in field 
testing, it is not a requirement that ALL participate.

89

41

7.1.5 …include provisions for 
embedding a small sample of items 
designed for the PARCC Summative 
Assessment into field testing for the 
Diagnostic Assessment"

In order to evaluate the impact that this will have on the large number of items that will need 
to be field tested already, please define "small sample" in specific terms.

Respondents should propose a sufficient number of 
items to ensure that the assessment items are 
comparable where they are measuring similar 
content.  Although the assessments are being 
developed for different purposes it is important that 
the diagnostic not give a vastly different  picture of 
student performance.
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90

41

7.1.5 The respondent should 
propose a multi-stage field test 
design that requires different levels 
of involvement acrss schools and 
students or include multiple field test 
windows including a detailed 
description of the following…"

Is it acceptable to field test outside of Florida? Is it acceptable to field test outside of 
PARCC states? Is it acceptable to conduct fixed-form standalone field testing?

Field testing should occur in PARCC states only.

91

42

7.1.6 The vendor is responsible for 
producing the first full mockup and 
all additional versions of computer 
delivered forms/item banks (as 
appropriate) for the online 
assessments…

Please explain what is meant by "all additional versions." The contract ends after two years 
of service - please explain how many future, operational administrations vendors should 
plan for in order to fulfill this requirement. 

The contract recipient(s) is only responsible for the 
first operational year under this contract. 
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92

44, 59, 97

7.1.7 However, in the event that the 
PARCC computer platform/delivery 
system is not available before Field 
testing of the Diagnostic Assessment 
begins, the following will be 
needed… a secure computer 
delivery plaform that conforms to the 
PARCC interoperability standards...'   
8.1.5 Anything by whatsoever 
designation it may be known, that is 
produced by, or developed in 
connection with, this Contract shall 
become the exclusive property of the 
State of Florida and may be 
copyrighted, patented, or otherwise 
restricted s provided by Florida or 
federal law. Nether the Contractor 
nor any individual employed under 
this Contract shall have any 
proprietary interest in the product. 
Attachment 1 (listed as deliverable) 
Delivery of the test delivery platform 
(and as evidence of completion) 
Final and operational plaftorm, if 
needed.                                               
Attachment 6: XI.E. The Department 
shall have full and complete 
ownership of all software developed 
pursuant to the Contract...

Does the Department intend to own the platform that would deliver the field test items? 
Please clarify what technologies would be owned by the Department and by PARCC. 

The Diagnostic Assements are intended to be field 
tested and operationally delivered using the PARCC 
platform

93

50-56 Table 2.Proposed Deliverables
Thoughout the table, "operational administration of the … assessments" is considered a 
final deliverable and references are made to section 7.1.6, however, 7.1.6 does not 
describe operational administration of the test. Please explain. 

The deliverable referred to references all final 
materials so that the assessments may be operational 
immediately following the completion of development.  
Actual operation of the Diagnostic Assessments will 
be procured under a separate contract.

94

53

Table 2. Development of a test 
delivery engine with the logic capable 
of evaluating the level of inferences 
that can be supported by the 
assessment as defined by a teacher.

This is labeled as a "final" deliverable. Please clarify, at the conclusion of this contract, does 
the Department intend to own the adaptive test delivery engine? Please explain the 
parameters by which a teacher may define an assessment.

See answer to Question #94
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95
54

Tabel 2. Delivery of the test delivery 
platform

This is listed as a "final" deliverable. Does the Department intend for vendors to deliver an 
entire platform that will then be owned by the Department at the conclusion of the contract?

See answer to Question #94

96

See 
answer to 
Question 
#94

7.3 Deliverables and 3.5.2 Period of 
Performance

The Table of Deliverables shows work starting in October 2013. The Period of Performance 
says that any contract resulting from this ITN is tentatively schedule to begin no sooner 
than November 2013. The Price Sheets also show Pricing starting in November 2013. 
Should proposers plan to start work in October 2013 rather than November 2013?

The period of performance is expected to be 
November 2013 - July 2015.

97

various 
page 
numbers

Amendment 1 and various sections 
of RFP detailing requirements for 
samples to be submitted with 
proposals:                                      • 8 
– 10 reading passages
• 20 decoding items
• 20 vocabulary items
• 10 counting and cardinality
• 10 operations and algebraic 
thinking
• 10 measurement and data 
•      Respondents should submit 4 
complete examples of how one 
would structure and implement a 
fluency assessment from among 
relevant standards which span 
across grades 2 – 6 and include 
recommendations on collecting and 
using timing information, and allow 
the evaluators of this ITN to 
understand the respondent’s 
approach to item development 
and/or procurement.

Given the large volume of sample items being requested for submission with proposals, will 
PARCC consider a proposal deadline extension that will provide bidder's a few more weeks 
to submit proposals?

See answer to Question #28.

Submitted by CTB/McGraw Hill

REVISED July 15, 2013



 
 
Potential proposers have 72 hours from posting of addenda to protest the requirements 
of each addendum. Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in section 
120.57(3), Florida Statutes, or failure to post the bond or other security required by law 
within the time allowed for filing a bond shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under 
chapter 120, Florida Statutes. 
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